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Introduction

As part of its ongoing mission, the United States Sentencing Commission provides
Congress, the judiciary, the executive branch, and the general public with data extracted and
analyzed from sentencing documents submitted by courts to the Commission.! Data is reported
on an annual basis in the Commission’s Annual Report and Sourcebook of Federal Sentencing
Statistics.” After the Supreme Court’s decision in United States v. Booker on January 12, 2005,
which rendered the sentencing guidelines advisory instead of mandatory, many people expressed
an interest in knowing what changes, if any, in federal sentencing practices would result. The
Commission responded by reconfiguring its data collection, analysis, and reporting efforts to
provide real-time data reporting from the submitted documents.

The Commission first reported data on February 10, 2005 to Congress® and began
reporting data approximately monthly shortly thereafter. The types of data reported increased
over time to accommodate various requests for the additional information. In March 2006, the
Commission released a comprehensive report, Final Report on the Impact of United States v.
Booker on Federal Sentencing,” based on cases sentenced one year since the Booker decision.
Because the report included additional analyses that had not been included in the monthly
reports, not all the data presented in the report was comparable with the monthly releases, which
made comparing data over time difficult.

In an effort to standardize the Commission’s post-Booker analyses and to facilitate the
identification of emerging trends going forward, the Commission began generating a new set of
tables and charts on a quarterly basis for public release on the Commission’s website beginning
with the third quarter of fiscal year 2006. These quarterly data reports are similar in format and
methodology to tables and figures produced in the Sourcebook or in the Commission’s Booker
report. Some of the figures include data from fiscal years before the Booker decision to facilitate
analysis of sentencing trends over time. Other figures and all of the tables contain cumulative
data (i.e., data from the start of the fiscal year through the most current quarter). Appendix B
cross-references the quarterly table numbers and figure letters as well as the corresponding
number or letter in the Sourcebook (if it exists in the Sourcebook) so that the quarterly data can

' In each felony or Class A misdemeanor case sentenced in federal court, sentencing courts are required to submit
the following documents to the Commission: the Judgment and Commitment Order, the Statement of Reasons, the
plea agreement (if applicable), the indictment or other charging document, and the presentence report. See 28 U.S.C.
§ 994(w).

? Electronic copies of the 1995-2010 Annual Report and Sourcebook of Federal Sentencing Statistics are available
at the Commission’s website, Www.ussc.gov.

3 See www.ussc.gov/bf.htm for an electronic copy of the prepared testimony of Ricardo H. Hinojosa, chair of the
United States Sentencing Commission, before the Subcommittee on Crime, Terrorism, and Homeland Security,
Committee on the Judiciary, United States House of Representatives, February 10, 2005.

4 See www.ussc.gov/bf.htm for an electronic copy of the Commission’s Final Report on the Impact of United States
v. Booker on Federal Sentencing.
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be compared easily with data from prior fiscal years.” In Appendix A are descriptions of datafile
and variable definitions.

> The Commission has tried to maintain the same table numbers and figure letters over the past several years but,
due to slight differences in reporting categories between pre- and post-Booker time periods, the numbers and letters
may not correspond exactly over time. Please refer to the table of contents for each of the prior Sourcebook years to
determine the corresponding table number or figure letter.
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Table 1

NATIONAL COMPARISON OF SENTENCE IMPOSED AND
POSITION RELATIVE TO THE GUIDELINE RANGE'

Fiscal Year 2010
N %
TOTAL CASES 81,859 100.0
CASES SENTENCED WITHIN GUIDELINE RANGE 45,028 55.0
CASES SENTENCED ABOVE GUIDELINE RANGE 1,512 1.8
DEPARTURE ABOVE GUIDELINE RANGE 469 0.6
Upward Departure From Guideline Range2 350 0.4
Upward Departure With Booker /18 U.S.C. § 3553° 119 0.1
OTHERWISE ABOVE GUIDELINE RANGE 1,043 1.3
Above Guideline Range With Booker /18 U.S.C. § 3553* 916 1.1
All Remaining Cases Above Guideline Range5 127 0.2
GOVERNMENT SPONSORED BELOW RANGE'’ 20,754 254
§5K1.1 Substantial Assistance Departure 9,421 11.5
§5K3.1 Early Disposition Program Departure 8,119 9.9
Other Government Sponsored Below Range 3,214 3.9
NON-GOVERNMENT SPONSORED BELOW RANGE 14,565 17.8
DEPARTURE BELOW GUIDELINE RANGE 2,552 3.1
Downward Departure From Guideline Range2 1,687 2.1
Downward Departure With Booker /18 U.S.C. § 3553° 865 1.1
OTHERWISE BELOW GUIDELINE RANGE 12,013 14.7
Below Guideline Range With Booker /18 U.S.C. § 3553 11,116 13.6
All Remaining Cases Below Guideline Range5 897 1.1

! This table reflects the 83,946 cases sentenced in Fiscal Year 2010. Of these, 2,087 cases were excluded because information was
missing from the submitted documents that prevented the comparison of the sentence and the guideline range. Descriptions of
variables used in this table are provided in Appendix A.

2 All cases with departures in which the court did not indicate as a reason either United States v. Booker, 18 U.S.C. § 3553, ora
factor or reason specifically prohibited in the provisions, policy statements, or commentary of the Guidelines Manual.

* All cases sentenced outside of the guideline range in which the court indicated both a departure (see footnote 2) and a reference to
either United States v. Booker, 18 U.S.C. § 3553, or related factors as a reason for sentencing outside of the guideline system.

4 All cases sentenced outside of the guideline range in which no departure was indicated and in which the court cited United States v.
Booker, 18 U.S.C. § 3553, or related factors as one of the reasons for sentencing outside of the guideline system.

> All cases sentenced outside of the guideline range that could not be classified into any of the three previous outside of the range
categories. This category includes cases in which no reason was provided for a sentence outside of the guideline range.

® Cases in which a reason for the sentence indicated that the prosecution initiated, proposed, or stipulated to a sentence outside of
the guideline range, either pursuant to a plea agreement or as part of a non-plea negotiation with the defendant.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY10.
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Table 2 2
SENTENCES RELATIVE TO THE GUIDELINE RANGE BY CIRCUIT AND DISTRICT'
Fiscal Year 2010
WITHIN UPWARD ABOVE REMAINING
GUIDELINE UPWARD DEPARTURE RANGE ABOVE

CIRCUIT RANGE DEPARTURE W/ BOOKER W/ BOOKER RANGE
District TOTAL N % N % N % N % N %
TOTAL 81,859 45,028 55.0 350 0.4 119 0.1 916 1.1 127 0.2
D.C. CIRCUIT 380 127 334 4 1.1 2 0.5 3 0.8 0 0.0
District of Columbia 380 127 334 4 1.1 2 0.5 3 0.8 0 0.0
FIRST CIRCUIT 1,880 1,029 54.7 5 0.3 1 0.1 17 0.9 7 0.4
Maine 169 75 444 0 0.0 1 0.6 2 1.2 0 0.0
Massachusetts 442 142 32.1 3 0.7 0 0.0 5 1.1 3 0.7
New Hampshire 231 98 424 1 0.4 0 0.0 5 2.2 0 0.0
Puerto Rico 879 642 73.0 1 0.1 0 0.0 4 0.5 4 0.5
Rhode Island 159 72 453 0 0.0 0 0.0 1 0.6 0 0.0
SECOND CIRCUIT 4,380 1,743 39.8 11 0.3 0.1 25 0.6 5 0.1
Connecticut 425 159 374 1 0.2 0.2 4 0.9 0 0.0
New York

Eastern 1,175 372 31.7 2 0.2 0 0.0 13 1.1 1 0.1

Northern 505 304 60.2 1 0.2 0 0.0 0 0.0 1 0.2

Southern 1,431 467 32.6 1 0.1 1 0.1 5 0.3 1 0.1

Western 667 362 543 5 0.7 1 0.1 3 0.4 2 0.3
Vermont 177 79 44.6 1 0.6 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0
THIRD CIRCUIT 2,936 1,301 44.3 8 0.3 2 0.1 22 0.7 5 0.2
Delaware 131 42 32.1 0 0.0 0 0.0 6 4.6 0 0.0
New Jersey 818 402 49.1 2 0.2 0 0.0 5 0.6 0 0.0
Pennsylvania

Eastern 928 346 37.3 1 0.1 0 0.0 5 0.5 2 0.2

Middle 494 210 425 4 0.8 1 0.2 1 0.2 0 0.0

Western 492 261 53.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 4 0.8 3 0.6
Virgin Islands 73 40 54.8 1 14 1 1.4 1 1.4 0 0.0
FOURTH CIRCUIT 6,621 4,090 61.8 42 0.6 15 0.2 91 1.4 6 0.1
Maryland 732 338 46.2 11 1.5 4 0.5 12 1.6 3 0.4
North Carolina

Eastern 739 396 53.6 9 1.2 3 0.4 3 0.4 0 0.0

Middle 552 404 73.2 1 0.2 1 0.2 14 2.5 0 0.0

Western 502 285 56.8 3 0.6 0 0.0 5 1.0 0 0.0
South Carolina 1,237 750 60.6 7 0.6 2 0.2 10 0.8 3 0.2
Virginia

Eastern 1,971 1,453 73.7 8 0.4 4 0.2 25 1.3 0 0.0

Western 363 181 49.9 0 0.0 1 0.3 18 5.0 0 0.0
West Virginia

Northern 283 155 54.8 1 0.4 0 0.0 3 1.1 0 0.0

Southern 242 128 52.9 2 0.8 0 0.0 1 0.4 0 0.0
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Table 2 (cont.) 3
§5K1.1 §5K3.1 OTHER DOWNWARD BELOW REMAINING
SUBSTANTIAL EARLY GOV'T DOWNWARD DEPARTURE RANGE BELOW

CIRCUIT ASSISTANCE DISPOSITION SPONSORED DEPARTURE W/BOOKER W/BOOKER RANGE
District N % N % N % N % N % N % N %
TOTAL 9,421 11.5 8,119 9.9 3,214 3.9 1,687 2.1 865 1.1 11,116 13.6 897 1.1
D.C. CIRCUIT 115 30.3 0 0.0 47 124 10 2.6 8 2.1 57 15.0 7 1.8
District of Columbia 115 30.3 0 0.0 47 12.4 10 2.6 8 2.1 57 15.0 7 1.8
FIRST CIRCUIT 254 13.5 31 1.6 131 7.0 30 1.6 21 1.1 338 18.0 16 0.9
Maine 61 36.1 0 0.0 1 0.6 2 1.2 0 0.0 27 16.0 0 0.0
Massachusetts 49 11.1 0 0.0 82 18.6 13 29 8 1.8 133 30.1 4 0.9
New Hampshire 61 26.4 0 0.0 22 9.5 2 0.9 4 1.7 36 15.6 2 0.9
Puerto Rico 66 7.5 31 35 25 2.8 13 1.5 7 0.8 76 8.6 10 1.1
Rhode Island 17 10.7 0 0.0 1 0.6 0 0.0 2 1.3 66 41.5 0 0.0
SECOND CIRCUIT 846 19.3 0 0.0 115 2.6 120 2.7 122 2.8 1,315 30.0 75 1.7
Connecticut 67 15.8 0 0.0 10 24 33 7.8 23 5.4 123 28.9 4 0.9
New York

Eastern 263 224 0 0.0 30 2.6 47 4.0 45 3.8 382 32.5 20 1.7

Northern 103 20.4 0 0.0 9 1.8 7 1.4 6 1.2 73 14.5 1 0.2

Southern 228 15.9 0 0.0 27 1.9 21 1.5 37 2.6 600 41.9 43 3.0

Western 164 24.6 0 0.0 31 4.6 3 0.4 2 0.3 88 13.2 6 0.9
Vermont 21 11.9 0 0.0 8 4.5 9 5.1 9 5.1 49 27.7 1 0.6
THIRD CIRCUIT 733 25.0 0 0.0 94 3.2 47 1.6 50 1.7 634 21.6 40 14
Delaware 24 18.3 0 0.0 1 0.8 1 0.8 1 0.8 52 39.7 4 3.1
New Jersey 225 27.5 0 0.0 13 1.6 15 1.8 7 0.9 142 17.4 7 0.9
Pennsylvania

Eastern 297 32.0 0 0.0 22 2.4 8 0.9 19 2.0 209 22.5 19 2.0

Middle 97 19.6 0 0.0 47 9.5 12 2.4 11 22 110 22.3 1 0.2

Western 75 15.2 0 0.0 7 1.4 10 2.0 12 2.4 115 234 5 1.0
Virgin Islands 15 20.5 0 0.0 4 5.5 1 1.4 0 0.0 6 8.2 4 5.5
FOURTH CIRCUIT 1,012 153 0 0.0 207 3.1 92 14 46 0.7 949 14.3 71 1.1
Maryland 163 22.3 0 0.0 69 9.4 12 1.6 15 2.0 96 13.1 9 1.2
North Carolina

Eastern 262 355 0 0.0 2 0.3 3 0.4 1 0.1 54 7.3 6 0.8

Middle 60 10.9 0 0.0 1 0.2 4 0.7 2 0.4 62 11.2 3 0.5

Western 140 27.9 0 0.0 6 1.2 7 1.4 1 0.2 51 10.2 4 0.8
South Carolina 190 15.4 0 0.0 42 3.4 17 1.4 7 0.6 192 15.5 17 1.4
Virginia

Eastern 81 4.1 0 0.0 39 2.0 42 2.1 18 0.9 273 13.9 28 1.4

Western 64 17.6 0 0.0 16 44 5 1.4 2 0.6 74 20.4 2 0.6
West Virginia

Northern 26 9.2 0 0.0 32 11.3 1 0.4 0 0.0 63 22.3 2 0.7

Southern 26 10.7 0 0.0 0 0.0 1 0.4 0 0.0 84 34.7 0 0.0
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Table 2 (cont.) 4
WITHIN UPWARD ABOVE REMAINING
GUIDELINE UPWARD DEPARTURE RANGE ABOVE

CIRCUIT RANGE DEPARTURE W/ BOOKER W/ BOOKER RANGE
District TOTAL N % N % N % N % N %
FIFTH CIRCUIT 19,869 14,170 71.3 85 0.4 30 0.2 301 1.5 27 0.1
Louisiana

Eastern 413 285 69.0 2 0.5 7 1.7 10 24 0 0.0

Middle 202 121 59.9 8 4.0 1 0.5 4 2.0 0 0.0

Western 368 262 71.2 4 1.1 5 1.4 9 24 6 1.6
Mississippi

Northern 169 102 60.4 0 0.0 0 0.0 13 7.7 0 0.0

Southern 324 234 72.2 0 0.0 0 0.0 7 2.2 1 0.3
Texas

Eastern 848 663 78.2 4 0.5 0 0.0 4 0.5 2 0.2

Northern 931 596 64.0 15 1.6 10 1.1 44 4.7 3 0.3

Southern 8,479 5,481 64.6 36 0.4 4 0.0 79 0.9 4 0.0

Western 8,135 6,426 79.0 16 0.2 3 0.0 131 1.6 11 0.1
SIXTH CIRCUIT 5,577 2,779 49.8 24 0.4 11 0.2 69 1.2 7 0.1
Kentucky

Eastern 636 274 43.1 2 0.3 1 0.2 11 1.7 0 0.0

Western 505 270 53.5 1 0.2 0 0.0 3 0.6 0 0.0
Michigan

Eastern 749 333 44.5 2 0.3 0 0.0 5 0.7 0 0.0

Western 541 320 59.1 11 2.0 3 0.6 14 2.6 0 0.0
Ohio

Northern 665 371 55.8 1 0.2 1 0.2 12 1.8 4 0.6

Southern 679 265 39.0 0 0.0 3 0.4 9 1.3 2 0.3
Tennessee

Eastern 839 477 56.9 1 0.1 2 0.2 6 0.7 0.1

Middle 294 127 432 5 1.7 1 0.3 1.4 0 0.0

Western 669 342 51.1 1 0.1 0 0.0 5 0.7 0 0.0
SEVENTH CIRCUIT 3,043 1,458 47.9 20 0.7 13 0.4 53 1.7 8 0.3
Illinois

Central 375 207 55.2 1 0.3 0 0.0 3 0.8 0 0.0

Northern 880 364 414 7 0.8 2 0.2 15 1.7 0.1

Southern 318 215 67.6 9 2.8 9 2.8 5 1.6 1 0.3
Indiana

Northern 460 258 56.1 1 0.2 0 0.0 9 2.0 5 1.1

Southern 329 167 50.8 1 0.3 1 0.3 11 33 0 0.0
Wisconsin

Eastern 471 140 29.7 0 0.0 0 0.0 9 1.9 0.2

Western 210 107 51.0 1 0.5 1 0.5 1 0.5 0 0.0
EIGHTH CIRCUIT 4,907 2,614 53.3 39 0.8 8 0.2 70 1.4 5 0.1
Arkansas

Eastern 391 242 61.9 3 0.8 1 0.3 10 2.6 0 0.0

Western 258 194 75.2 0 0.0 0 0.0 1 0.4 0 0.0
Towa

Northern 344 192 55.8 9 2.6 2 0.6 11 32 2 0.6

Southern 452 190 42.0 3 0.7 0 0.0 5 1.1 0 0.0
Minnesota 504 149 29.6 2 0.4 2 0.4 0.8 0 0.0
Missouri

Eastern 1,039 492 47.4 8 0.8 0 0.0 9 0.9 0 0.0

Western 654 343 524 2 0.3 0 0.0 21 32 1 0.2
Nebraska 601 360 59.9 3 0.5 0 0.0 2 0.3 1 0.2
North Dakota 261 169 64.8 0 0.0 1 0.4 1 0.4 1 0.4
South Dakota 403 283 70.2 9 2.2 2 0.5 6 1.5 0 0.0
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Table 2 (cont.) 5
§5K1.1 §5K3.1 OTHER DOWNWARD BELOW REMAINING
SUBSTANTIAL EARLY GOV'T DOWNWARD DEPARTURE RANGE BELOW

CIRCUIT ASSISTANCE DISPOSITION SPONSORED DEPARTURE W/BOOKER W/BOOKER RANGE
District N % N % N % N % N % N % N %
FIFTH CIRCUIT 1,224 6.2 1,139 5.7 315 1.6 696 3.5 63 0.3 1,628 8.2 191 1.0
Louisiana

Eastern 28 6.8 0 0.0 8 1.9 6 1.5 4 1.0 55 13.3 8 1.9

Middle 28 13.9 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 1 0.5 38 18.8 1 0.5

Western 33 9.0 0 0.0 3 0.8 4 1.1 6 1.6 22 6.0 14 3.8
Mississippi

Northern 39 23.1 0 0.0 1 0.6 0 0.0 1 0.6 9 5.3 4 24

Southern 34 10.5 0 0.0 4 1.2 2 0.6 1 0.3 33 10.2 8 2.5
Texas

Eastern 59 7.0 0 0.0 48 5.7 14 1.7 4 0.5 45 5.3 5 0.6

Northern 130 14.0 0 0.0 8 0.9 5 0.5 5 0.5 110 11.8 5 0.5

Southern 403 4.8 1,084 12.8 125 1.5 495 5.8 13 0.2 727 8.6 28 0.3

Western 470 5.8 55 0.7 118 1.5 170 2.1 28 0.3 589 7.2 118 1.5
SIXTH CIRCUIT 1,276 22.9 2 0.0 208 3.7 78 14 105 1.9 945 16.9 73 1.3
Kentucky

Eastern 259 40.7 0 0.0 11 1.7 3 0.5 2 0.3 70 11.0 3 0.5

Western 110 21.8 0 0.0 47 9.3 3 0.6 2 0.4 64 12.7 5 1.0
Michigan

Eastern 169 22.6 1 0.1 19 2.5 11 1.5 14 1.9 191 25.5 4 0.5

Western 70 12.9 0 0.0 1 0.2 12 2.2 9 1.7 96 17.7 5 0.9
Ohio

Northern 112 16.8 1 0.2 9 1.4 13 2.0 13 2.0 117 17.6 11 1.7

Southern 177 26.1 0 0.0 64 9.4 17 2.5 30 44 90 133 22 32
Tennessee

Eastern 209 24.9 0 0.0 6 0.7 6 0.7 4 0.5 115 13.7 12 1.4

Middle 42 14.3 0 0.0 32 10.9 6 2.0 9 3.1 66 22.4 2 0.7

Western 128 19.1 0 0.0 19 2.8 7 1.0 22 33 136 20.3 9 1.3
SEVENTH CIRCUIT 462 15.2 1 0.0 124 4.1 63 2.1 97 3.2 694 22.8 50 1.6
Illinois

Central 72 19.2 0 0.0 8 2.1 6 1.6 4 1.1 71 18.9 3 0.8

Northern 124 14.1 1 0.1 10 1.1 24 2.7 68 7.7 252 28.6 12 1.4

Southern 16 5.0 0 0.0 6 1.9 8 2.5 10 3.1 28 8.8 11 35
Indiana

Northern 84 18.3 0 0.0 21 4.6 10 2.2 7 1.5 59 12.8 6 1.3

Southern 52 15.8 0 0.0 25 7.6 4 1.2 1 0.3 65 19.8 2 0.6
Wisconsin

Eastern 99 21.0 0 0.0 54 11.5 7 1.5 3 0.6 142 30.1 16 3.4

Western 15 7.1 0 0.0 0 0.0 4 1.9 4 1.9 77 36.7 0 0.0
EIGHTH CIRCUIT 760 15.5 31 0.6 194 4.0 63 1.3 66 1.3 1,007 20.5 50 1.0
Arkansas

Eastern 38 9.7 0 0.0 19 4.9 10 2.6 3 0.8 57 14.6 8 2.0

Western 26 10.1 0 0.0 0 0.0 1 0.4 2 0.8 33 12.8 1 0.4
Towa

Northern 76 22.1 0 0.0 8 2.3 1 0.3 2 0.6 41 11.9 0 0.0

Southern 103 22.8 0 0.0 32 7.1 1 0.2 3 0.7 113 25.0 2 0.4
Minnesota 123 24.4 0 0.0 9 1.8 12 2.4 22 4.4 179 35.5 2 0.4
Missouri

Eastern 198 19.1 0 0.0 48 4.6 2 0.2 12 1.2 258 24.8 12 1.2

Western 125 19.1 0 0.0 25 3.8 6 0.9 3 0.5 119 18.2 9 1.4
Nebraska 17 2.8 31 52 37 6.2 12 2.0 4 0.7 123 20.5 11 1.8
North Dakota 47 18.0 0 0.0 8 3.1 7 2.7 3 1.1 21 8.0 3 1.1

South Dakota 7 1.7 0 0.0 8 2.0 11 2.7 12 3.0 63 15.6 2 0.5
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Table 2 (cont.) 6
WITHIN UPWARD ABOVE REMAINING
GUIDELINE UPWARD DEPARTURE RANGE ABOVE

CIRCUIT RANGE DEPARTURE W/ BOOKER W/ BOOKER RANGE
District TOTAL N % N % N % N % N %
NINTH CIRCUIT 18,330 7,357 40.1 71 0.4 18 0.1 113 0.6 29 0.2
Alaska 156 64 41.0 2 1.3 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0
Arizona 6,198 2,698 435 44 0.7 5 0.1 25 0.4 4 0.1
California

Central 2,110 721 342 3 0.1 5 0.2 19 0.9 7 0.3

Eastern 995 403 40.5 1 0.1 2 0.2 12 1.2 3 0.3

Northern 876 432 49.3 3 0.3 1 0.1 10 1.1 5 0.6

Southern 4,580 1,396 30.5 4 0.1 1 0.0 5 0.1 8 0.2
Guam 55 39 70.9 0 0.0 2 3.6 0 0.0 0 0.0
Hawaii 166 62 37.3 0 0.0 0 0.0 3 1.8 0 0.0
Idaho 300 128 42.7 0 0.0 0 0.0 1 0.3 0 0.0
Montana 376 259 68.9 2 0.5 0 0.0 11 2.9 1 0.3
Nevada 618 385 62.3 4 0.6 0 0.0 8 1.3 1 0.2
Northern Mariana Islands 28 21 75.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0
Oregon 609 246 40.4 0 0.0 0 0.0 7 1.1 0 0.0
Washington

Eastern 403 145 36.0 2 0.5 2 0.5 7 1.7 0 0.0

Western 860 358 41.6 6 0.7 0 0.0 5 0.6 0 0.0
TENTH CIRCUIT 6,947 4,110 59.2 21 0.3 3 0.0 45 0.6 13 0.2
Colorado 523 301 57.6 0 0.0 1 0.2 6 1.1 1 0.2
Kansas 708 389 54.9 6 0.8 2 0.3 18 2.5 1 0.1
New Mexico 3,719 2,284 61.4 9 0.2 0 0.0 4 0.1 6 0.2
Oklahoma

Eastern 113 72 63.7 0 0.0 0 0.0 1 0.9 0 0.0

Northern 155 101 65.2 0 0.0 0 0.0 1 0.6 0 0.0

Western 415 295 71.1 0 0.0 0 0.0 8 1.9 0 0.0
Utah 897 407 454 5 0.6 0 0.0 4 0.4 3 0.3
Wyoming 417 261 62.6 1 0.2 0 0.0 3 0.7 2 0.5
ELEVENTH CIRCUIT 6,989 4,250 60.8 20 0.3 13 0.2 107 1.5 15 0.2
Alabama

Middle 243 141 58.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 4 1.6 0 0.0

Northern 423 268 63.4 1 0.2 1 0.2 4 0.9 1 0.2

Southern 307 185 60.3 0 0.0 2 0.7 6 2.0 1 0.3
Florida

Middle 1,677 877 52.3 4 0.2 1 0.1 29 1.7 2 0.1

Northern 390 262 67.2 1 0.3 2 0.5 4 1.0 1 0.3

Southern 2,269 1,432 63.1 4 0.2 3 0.1 25 1.1 8 0.4
Georgia

Middle 298 221 74.2 2 0.7 2 0.7 8 2.7 2 0.7

Northern 673 321 47.7 2 0.3 2 0.3 8 1.2 0 0.0

Southern 709 543 76.6 6 0.8 0 0.0 19 2.7 0 0.0
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Table 2 (cont.) 7
§5K1.1 §5K3.1 OTHER DOWNWARD BELOW REMAINING
SUBSTANTIAL EARLY GOV'T DOWNWARD DEPARTURE RANGE BELOW

CIRCUIT ASSISTANCE DISPOSITION SPONSORED DEPARTURE W/BOOKER W/BOOKER RANGE
District N % N % N % N % N % N % N %
NINTH CIRCUIT 1,328 7.2 6,050 33.0 1,016 5.5 288 1.6 169 0.9 1,638 8.9 253 1.4
Alaska 20 12.8 1 0.6 23 14.7 2 1.3 5 32 36 23.1 3 1.9
Arizona 176 2.8 2,660 429 143 2.3 77 1.2 31 0.5 290 4.7 45 0.7
California

Central 243 11.5 419 19.9 179 8.5 57 2.7 51 24 315 14.9 91 43

Eastern 95 9.5 309 31.1 49 4.9 15 1.5 5 0.5 93 9.3 8 0.8

Northern 65 7.4 94 10.7 96 11.0 13 1.5 22 2.5 128 14.6 7 0.8

Southern 276 6.0 2,386 52.1 106 2.3 91 2.0 27 0.6 231 5.0 49 1.1
Guam 7 12.7 0 0.0 2 3.6 0 0.0 0 0.0 4 7.3 1 1.8
Hawaii 49 29.5 0 0.0 3 1.8 0 0.0 0 0.0 48 28.9 1 0.6
Idaho 74 24.7 33 11.0 6 2.0 1 0.3 3 1.0 49 16.3 5 1.7
Montana 48 12.8 0 0.0 8 2.1 4 1.1 3 0.8 39 10.4 1 0.3
Nevada 50 8.1 0 0.0 43 7.0 7 1.1 1 0.2 99 16.0 20 32
Northern Mariana Islands 1 3.6 0 0.0 1 3.6 0 0.0 2 7.1 3 10.7 0 0.0
Oregon 92 15.1 43 7.1 102 16.7 6 1.0 8 1.3 96 15.8 9 1.5
Washington

Eastern 50 12.4 67 16.6 35 8.7 7 1.7 3 0.7 81 20.1 4 1.0

Western 82 9.5 38 4.4 220 25.6 8 0.9 8 0.9 126 14.7 9 1.0
TENTH CIRCUIT 421 6.1 865 12.5 638 9.2 122 1.8 47 0.7 639 9.2 23 0.3
Colorado 82 15.7 0 0.0 21 4.0 15 2.9 5 1.0 87 16.6 4 0.8
Kansas 122 17.2 0 0.0 93 13.1 1 0.1 1 0.1 74 10.5 1 0.1
New Mexico 70 1.9 659 17.7 439 11.8 72 1.9 20 0.5 148 4.0 8 0.2
Oklahoma

Eastern 25 22.1 0 0.0 1 0.9 0 0.0 0 0.0 14 12.4 0 0.0

Northern 25 16.1 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 28 18.1 0 0.0

Western 31 7.5 0 0.0 4 1.0 0 0.0 4 1.0 72 17.3 1 0.2
Utah 32 3.6 203 22.6 45 5.0 26 2.9 8 0.9 158 17.6 6 0.7
Wyoming 34 8.2 3 0.7 35 8.4 8 1.9 9 22 58 13.9 3 0.7
ELEVENTH CIRCUIT 990 14.2 0 0.0 125 1.8 78 1.1 71 1.0 1,272 18.2 48 0.7
Alabama

Middle 62 25.5 0 0.0 6 2.5 0 0.0 1 0.4 29 11.9 0 0.0

Northern 85 20.1 0 0.0 4 0.9 1 0.2 0 0.0 56 13.2 2 0.5

Southern 50 16.3 0 0.0 4 1.3 2 0.7 1 0.3 53 17.3 3 1.0
Florida

Middle 323 19.3 0 0.0 27 1.6 16 1.0 23 1.4 364 21.7 11 0.7

Northern 65 16.7 0 0.0 1 0.3 5 1.3 5 1.3 44 11.3 0 0.0

Southern 195 8.6 0 0.0 38 1.7 22 1.0 27 1.2 489 21.6 26 1.1
Georgia

Middle 41 13.8 0 0.0 8 2.7 0 0.0 1 0.3 12 4.0 1 0.3

Northern 97 14.4 0 0.0 28 4.2 25 3.7 13 1.9 173 25.7 4 0.6

Southern 72 10.2 0 0.0 9 1.3 7 1.0 0 0.0 52 7.3 1 0.1

' Of the 83,946 cases, 2,087 were excluded because information was missing from the submitted documents that prevented the comparison of the sentence and the guideline
range. The information needed to determine the relationship between the sentence imposed and the guideline range was missing in five percent or more of the cases received
from: Middle Georgia (29.2%), Arizona (8.7%), Western Texas (7.9%), Maryland (7.8%), Western Louisiana (7.3%), Guam (5.2%), and Eastern Virginia (5.0%).

Descriptions of variables used in this table are provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY10.



visited on 2/15/2012

Table 3 8
SENTENCES RELATIVE TO THE GUIDELINE RANGE
BY EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'
Fiscal Year 2010
WITHIN UPWARD ABOVE REMAINING
GUIDELINE UPWARD DEPARTURES RANGE WITH ABOVE
RANGE DEPARTURES W/ BOOKER W/ BOOKER RANGE
PRIMARY OFFENSE TOTAL N % N % N % N % N %
TOTAL 81,859 45,028 55.0 350 0.4 119 0.1 916 1.1 127 0.2
Murder 66 41 62.1 2 3.0 1 1.5 3 4.5 2 3.0
Manslaughter 64 38 59.4 7 10.9 3 4.7 9 14.1 1 1.6
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 38 16 42.1 0 0.0 0 0.0 3 7.9 0 0.0
Sexual Abuse 383 247 64.5 4 1.0 5 1.3 11 29 1 0.3
Assault 596 351 58.9 11 1.8 5 0.8 16 2.7 2 0.3
Robbery 1,079 621 57.6 15 1.4 5 0.5 30 2.8 5 0.5
Arson 75 38 50.7 4 5.3 0 0.0 1 1.3 2 2.7
Drugs - Trafficking 23,458 10,530 449 63 0.3 16 0.1 110 0.5 23 0.1
Drugs - Communication Facility 511 245 47.9 1 0.2 1 0.2 2 0.4 1 0.2
Drugs - Simple Possession 746 708 94.9 5 0.7 1 0.1 4 0.5 0 0.0
Firearms 7,969 4,667 58.6 71 0.9 24 0.3 169 2.1 33 0.4
Burglary/B&E 36 18 50.0 2 5.6 0 0.0 1 2.8 0 0.0
Auto Theft 91 52 57.1 1 1.1 1 1.1 3 33 0 0.0
Larceny 1,541 1,097 71.2 6 0.4 4 0.3 21 1.4 6 0.4
Fraud 7,471 4,149 55.5 24 0.3 19 0.3 112 1.5 16 0.2
Embezzlement 432 301 69.7 1 0.2 0 0.0 0 0.0 1 0.2
Forgery/Counterfeiting 877 577 65.8 8 0.9 3 0.3 22 2.5 1 0.1
Bribery 223 72 323 1 0.4 0 0.0 2 0.9 0 0.0
Tax 660 234 355 0 0.0 1 0.2 4 0.6 0 0.0
Money Laundering 800 278 34.8 1 0.1 0 0.0 6 0.8 0 0.0
Racketeering/Extortion 672 271 40.3 5 0.7 2 0.3 10 1.5 1 0.1
Gambling/Lottery 76 38 50.0 8 10.5 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0
Civil Rights 60 30 50.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 1 1.7
Immigration 27,922 16,763 60.0 77 0.3 19 0.1 272 1.0 23 0.1
Child Pornography 1,886 783 41.5 12 0.6 3 0.2 28 1.5 2 0.1
Prison Offenses 418 308 73.7 0 0.0 2 0.5 10 2.4 0 0.0
Administration of Justice Offenses 1,141 626 54.9 7 0.6 0 0.0 34 3.0 4 0.4
Environmental/Wildlife 166 110 66.3 2 1.2 0 0.0 1 0.6 0 0.0
National Defense 69 21 30.4 1 1.4 0 0.0 2 2.9 0 0.0
Antitrust 16 3 18.8 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0
Food & Drug 79 47 59.5 0 0.0 0 0.0 3 3.8 0 0.0
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 2,238 1,748 78.1 11 0.5 4 0.2 27 1.2 2 0.1
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Table 3 (cont.) K
§5K1.1 §5K3.1 OTHER BELOW DOWNWARD BELOW REMAINING
SUBSTANTIAL EARLY GOV'T DOWNWARD DEPARTURE RANGE BELOW
ASSISTANCE DISPOSITION SPONSORED DEPARTURE W/BOOKER  W/BOOKER RANGE

PRIMARY OFFENSE N % N % N % N % N % N % N %
TOTAL 9,421 11.5 8,119 9.9 3214 39 1,687 2.1 865 1.1 11,116 13.6 897 1.1
Murder 8 121 0 0.0 4 6.1 0 0.0 0 0.0 5 7.6 0 0.0
Manslaughter 1 1.6 0 0.0 2 31 0 0.0 0 0.0 347 0 0.0
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 9 237 0 0.0 379 0 0.0 0 0.0 7 184 0 0.0
Sexual Abuse 9 23 0 0.0 46 12.0 4 1.0 3 08 50 13.1 3 08
Assault 5 038 6 1.0 79 133 17 29 14 23 82 138 8 13
Robbery 100 9.3 202 39 36 36 33 31 29 188 174 7 06
Arson 17 227 0 00 2 27 1 13 1 13 9 120 0 0.0
Drugs - Trafficking 5,768 24.6 1,336 5.7 986 4.2 361 1.5 296 13 3,764 16.0 205 0.9
Drugs - Communication Facility 51 10.0 2 04 32 63 17 33 18 35 134 26.2 7 14
Drugs - Simple Possession 7 09 304 4 05 1 0.1 0 00 7 09 6 08
Firearms 911 114 9 0.1 384 48 132 1.7 98 1.2 1,368 17.2 103 1.3
Burglary/B&E 2 56 0 0.0 2 56 0 0.0 1 28 9 250 1 28
Auto Theft 17 187 0 00 1 11 0 0.0 0 0.0 14 154 2 22
Larceny 81 53 302 41 2.7 21 14 10 0.6 218 14.1 33 21
Fraud 1,196 16.0 4 0.1 286 3.8 120 1.6 106 14 1,322 17.7 117 1.6
Embezzlement 15 35 307 19 44 7 1.6 7 16 70 162 8 19
Forgery/Counterfeiting 84 9.6 2 02 25 29 12 14 8 09 121 138 14 1.6
Bribery 72 323 1 04 11 49 2 09 4 18 54 242 4 18
Tax 102 155 4 0.6 36 55 34 52 18 27 209 317 18 27
Money Laundering 196 245 18 23 70 8.8 15 19 10 1.3 191 239 15 19
Racketeering/Extortion 149 222 0 0.0 64 95 15 22 13 1.9 128 19.0 14 2.1
Gambling/Lottery 9 118 0 00 1 13 1 13 0 0.0 19 25.0 0 0.0
Civil Rights 11 183 0 00 1 17 0 0.0 1 17 11 183 5 83
Immigration 288 1.0 6,716 24.1 672 24 782 2.8 128 0.5 1,947 7.0 235 0.8
Child Pornography 57 3.0 0 00 195 103 43 23 57 3.0 676 35.8 30 1.6
Prison Offenses 11 26 307 30 72 5 12 307 40 9.6 6 14
Administration of Justice Offenses 106 9.3 5 04 68 6.0 17 1.5 14 12 242 212 18 1.6
Environmental/Wildlife 7 42 0 0.0 10 6.0 5 3.0 318 24 145 4 24
National Defense 19 275 0 0.0 6 87 7 10.1 4 58 9 13.0 0 00
Antitrust 8 50.0 0 00 0 0.0 1 63 1 63 3 188 0 0.0
Food & Drug 7 89 0 00 9 114 2 25 1 13 9 114 1 13
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 98 44 2 0.1 86 3.8 29 13 15 07 183 82 33 15

' Of the 83,946 cases, 2,087 were excluded due to information that was missing from the submitted documents that prevented the comparison of the sentence and the guideline range.

Descriptions of variables used in this table are provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY 10.



visited on 2/15/2012

"01AJDSSN - SOAIDSSN SAYeIRd 010T - SO0T ‘UOISSIUWO)) Fuoudues 'S’ N HIINOS

"V x1puoddy ur popraoid ore o[qe) SIY) Ul pasn SO[qeLIEA JO sUONdLDSO( |

$3S®)) JO JUIdJ

o, 6, &% < 9, Xy
‘2 % % % % %
<, <, <. <. <. <,
& ¢ & & & ¢
| | | | | | | | | | | | L | I L | | | | | | N c
V- ¥ V- % ¥ Y ¥ ¥V-% ¥V - F-F-—F - V- ¥ -¥-—- ¥ -V ¥ —
dgury dA0qQVY
dduey mopyg i
F - 0T
X ERPINDORIPURPUEE S A . MU SEP SR SRS Sk ol GRS A
dduey mopyg i
paJosuodg JUIWUIIA0) i
“““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““ Sl || 4
1roySnosquiny I
“““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““ 09
Aguey urpI
- 08
001

010T - S00T SIB3 X [BIST
(SHONHLINTS FONVYH 40 LNO ANV IONVH NIHLIM 404 VLVAd ATIALIVNO

V In31q



visited on 2/15/2012

I

0T AJOSSN - SOAIDSSN “SAFEIRd 010T - SO0T ‘UOISSIUWO) FUIouauds "S'N HIANOS

"y xipuaddy ur papraoxd a1e 9[qe) STy ur pasn sa[qelreA Jo suondiosaq

Jguey dA0qQVy

dduey mopyg

NN&@\Q%RQ&QSQN d9)00g

paaosuodS JUIWUIIA0D)ASURY UIYIIAA

0107 - S00T STed X [edstf

(SHONALNAS FONVYH 40 LNO HIHLO ANV
AAIOSNOIS INTNNIATAOD/ADNVH NIHLIM Y04 VLVA ATIALAVNO

q 9an3iyq

0T

oy

09

08

001

1

$3S®)) JO JUIdJ



visited on 2/15/2012

12
Table 4
QUARTERLY DATA FOR WITHIN RANGE AND OUT OF RANGE SENTENCES'
Fiscal Years 2005 - 2010
WITHIN GOVERNMENT
GUIDELINE SPONSORED BELOW ABOVE

FISCAL YEAR RANGE BELOW RANGE RANGE RANGE
Quarter % % % %
FY2005

1st Quarter 70.5 24.5 4.3 0.8

2ndQuarter 62.0 23.6 12.6 1.7

3rd Quarter 61.8 233 13.5 1.4

4th Quarter 62.3 24.2 12.0 1.5
FY2006

1st Quarter 61.8 24.0 12.7 1.4

2ndQuarter 60.8 24.5 13.0 1.7

3rd Quarter 62.1 24.8 11.5 1.6

4th Quarter 62.1 24.9 11.2 1.7
FY2007

1st Quarter 60.7 25.3 12.5 1.4

2ndQuarter 61.3 25.0 12.0 1.7

3rd Quarter 59.9 26.3 12.3 1.6

4th Quarter 61.4 25.8 11.4 1.4
FY2008

1st Quarter 60.0 26.5 12.0 1.5

2ndQuarter 58.9 25.5 13.9 1.7

3rd Quarter 59.6 25.1 13.7 1.6

4th Quarter 59.2 25.3 13.9 1.7
FY2009

1st Quarter 58.4 24.5 15.3 1.8

2ndQuarter 57.5 25.0 15.7 1.9

3rd Quarter 55.9 25.8 16.4 1.8

4th Quarter 55.6 25.8 16.5 2.1
FY2010

1st Quarter 55.1 25.9 16.9 2.1

2ndQuarter 55.1 25.9 17.3 1.7

3rd Quarter 55.2 24.6 18.3 1.9

4th Quarter 54.6 25.1 18.7 1.7

! Descriptions of variables used in this table are provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2005 - 2010 Datafiles, USSCFY05 - USSCFY10.
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Table 5 13
SENTENCES RELATIVE TO THE GUIDELINE RANGE
BY EACH PRIMARY SENTENCING GUIDELINE'
Fiscal Year 2010
Upward Downward
Within Departure Above Range = Government Sponsored Departure Below Range
Guideline Gdline with with All Other  Gdline with with All
Guideline Total Range Only Booker Booker Others §5K1.1 §5K3.1 Gov't Only Booker Booker Others
§2A1.1 139 83 0 0 1 0 30 0 9 0 2 12 2
§2A1.2 40 24 2 2 2 2 2 0 4 0 0 1 1
§2A1.3 29 15 5 3 3 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 0
§2A1.4 50 30 5 2 7 1 0 0 2 0 0 2 1
§2A1.5 19 7 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 4 6
§2A2.1 86 39 0 1 2 0 21 0 7 3 1 7 5
§2A2.2 340 181 7 3 7 0 10 1 55 11 13 49 3
§2A2.3 33 25 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 3
§2A2.4 152 95 1 1 1 1 0 6 12 9 2 20 4
§2A3.1 104 60 1 0 6 0 2 0 20 0 1 13 1
§2A3.2 49 33 1 1 2 0 0 0 4 1 1 6 0
§2A3.3 8 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0
§2A3.4 37 27 0 0 2 0 0 0 4 1 0 2 1
§2A3.5 247 161 3 0 12 1 2 0 9 4 4 49 2
§2A4.1 88 32 1 0 1 0 24 0 8 0 0 21 1
§2A4.2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2AS5.1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2A5.2 20 6 0 0 2 0 2 0 3 2 0 4 1
§2A5.3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2A6.1 151 71 3 2 18 0 3 1 15 5 4 27 2
§2A6.2 15 8 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 2 0
§2B1.1 8,470 4,784 39 24 140 22 1,169 9 324 142 121 1,541 155
§2B1.2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2B1.3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2B1.4 9 1 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 5 0
§2B1.5 19 2 0 0 0 0 3 0 4 0 0 10 0
§2B1.6° - - - - - - - - - - - - -
§2B2.1 56 34 3 0 2 0 3 0 1 0 1 10 2
§2B2.2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2B2.3 5 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2B3.1 1,833 952 25 10 59 12 296 2 65 42 41 313 16
§2B3.2 64 20 0 0 1 0 10 0 17 1 0 13 2
§2B3.3 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1
§2B4.1 59 18 0 0 1 0 14 0 1 1 4 19 1
§2B5.1 486 307 5 0 8 0 44 0 14 10 6 79 13
§2B5.2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2B5.3 194 67 1 0 0 1 48 0 15 3 3 47 9
§2B5.4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2B6.1 28 10 0 0 1 0 9 0 0 0 0 7 1
§2C1.1 284 82 1 1 5 0 95 0 12 2 3 81 2
§2C1.2 31 10 0 0 0 0 13 0 1 1 1 5 0
§2C1.3 11 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2C14 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2C1.5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2C1.6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2C1.7 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2C1.8 3 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2D1.1 23,448 10,546 66 17 107 23 5,672 1,311 994 372 309 3,807 224
§2D1.2 628 421 3 0 4 4 72 0 24 10 2 82 6
§2D1.3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2D1.4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Table 5 (cont.)
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Below Range
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Above Range
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§5K1.1 §5K3.1 Gov't

All

Only Booker

Total Range Only Booker
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Table 5 (cont.) 15
Upward Downward
Within Departure Above Range  Government Sponsored Departure Below Range
Guideline Gdline with with All Other  Gdline with with All
Guideline Total Range Only Booker Booker Others §5K1.1 §5K3.1 Gov't Only Booker Booker Others
§2H4.1 9 5 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 0
§2H4.2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2J1.1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2J1.2 156 58 1 0 4 1 29 0 14 0 1 46 2
§2J1.3 54 24 1 0 1 0 7 0 2 3 1 15 0
§2J1.4 24 16 0 1 1 0 3 0 1 0 0 1 1
§2J1.5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2J1.6 65 50 0 0 2 0 1 1 3 0 1 7 0
§2J1.7 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0
§2J1.8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2J1.9 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2K1.1 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2K1.2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2K1.3 13 5 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 1 0 2 0
§2K1.4 84 37 4 0 2 2 24 0 2 1 1 11 0
§2K1.5 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2K1.6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2K1.7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2K2.1 6,104 3,735 42 16 113 14 517 7 300 113 74 1,112 61
§2K2.2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2K2.3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2K2.4° - - - - - - - - - - - - -
§2K2.5 14 10 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2K2.6 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0
§2K3.1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2K3.2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2LL1.1 2,627 1,388 15 4 19 3 176 693 80 35 11 175 28
§21.1.2 19,893 11,287 52 14 230 11 64 5236 530 691 111 1,510 157
§2L.1.3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§21.2.1 338 183 1 0 7 0 49 0 26 1 3 57 11
§21.2.2 1,486 1,267 6 1 21 4 6 65 13 7 2 75 19
§21.2.3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§21.2.4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2L.2.5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2M1.1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0
§2M2.1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2M2.2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2M2.3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2M2.4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2M3.1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2M3.2 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
§2M3.3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0
§2M3.4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2M3.5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2M3.6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2M3.7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2M3.8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2M3.9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2M4.1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2M5.1 10 2 0 0 0 0 3 0 1 0 0 4 0
§2MS5.2 62 27 2 0 2 0 15 0 2 7 1 6 0
§2M5.3 21 1 0 0 0 0 9 0 3 2 4 2 0
§2Me6.1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2M6.2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2N1.1 4 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0
§2N1.2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
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Table 5 (cont.) 16
Upward Downward
Within Departure Above Range  Government Sponsored Departure Below Range
Guideline Gdline with with All Other  Gdline with with All
Guideline Total Range Only Booker Booker Others §5K1.1 §5K3.1 Gov't Only Booker Booker Others
§2N1.3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
§2N2.1 35 32 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2N3.1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2P1.1 239 176 0 2 6 0 7 3 4 3 2 32 4
§2P1.2 120 88 0 0 1 0 3 0 19 2 0 6 1
§2P1.3 17 14 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0
§2P1.4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2Q1.1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2Q1.2 42 18 0 0 0 0 2 0 4 4 2 12 0
§2Q1.3 32 14 0 0 0 0 5 0 5 5 0 3 0
§2Q1.4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2Q1.5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2Q1.6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2Q2.1 75 46 1 0 0 0 3 0 3 2 3 14 3
§2Q2.2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2R1.1 11 2 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 1 1 3 0
§2S1.1 952 293 0 0 4 0 347 2 60 15 11 207 13
§2S1.2 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2S1.3 313 138 1 0 0 0 33 17 41 11 4 61 7
§2S1.4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2T1.1 544 183 0 2 4 0 87 0 35 20 10 187 16
§2T1.2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2T1.3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2T1.4 128 51 0 0 1 0 15 0 7 6 4 41 3
§2T1.5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2T1.6 22 5 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 7 0 8 0
§2T1.7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2T1.8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2T1.9 22 6 0 0 1 0 7 0 0 3 2 3 0
§2T2.1 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2T2.2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2T3.1 21 7 0 0 0 0 4 1 1 0 2 6 0
§2T3.2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2T4.1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2X1.1 38 13 0 0 0 0 7 0 2 2 0 14 0
§2X2.1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2X3.1 99 49 0 0 2 0 17 0 7 0 2 20 2
§2X4.1 415 210 2 0 6 2 49 4 27 8 5 93 9
§2X5.1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2X5.2 192 174 0 2 8 1 0 0 1 0 1 3 2
§2X6.1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
§2X7.1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0
§2X7.2 4 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0
TOTAL 74,796 39,287 334 117 894 111 9,345 7,360 3,097 1,632 858 10,902 859

" Of the 83,946 cases, 9,150 were excluded due to one or both of the following reasons: information was missing from the submitted documents that prevented
the comparison of the sentence and the guideline range (2,087) or missing guideline applied (9,039). Descriptions of variables used in this table are provided in
Appendix A.

% In 830 cases, the defendant was convicted of one or more counts of violating 18 U.S.C. § 1028A. By statute, the punishment for this crime must be served
consecutively to any other punishment; therefore, in these 830 cases the conviction for this crime did not affect the guideline calculation for the underlying
offense.

* In 2,360 cases, the defendant was convicted of one or more counts of violating 18 U.S.C. § 924(c). By statute, the punishment for this crime must be served
consecutively to any other punishment; therefore, in these 2,360 cases the conviction for this crime did not affect the guideline calculation for the underlying
offense.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY10.
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Table 7

19

§5K1.1 SUBSTANTIAL ASSISTANCE DEPARTURE CASES: DEGREE OF
DECREASE FOR OFFENDERS IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'

Fiscal Year 2010
Median Median Decrease Median Percent
Sentence in Months From Decrease From
PRIMARY OFFENSE N in Months Guideline Minimum Guideline Minimum
TOTAL 8,974 36.0 30.0 50.0
Murder 6 9.3 65.0 88.2
Manslaughter 0 -- -- --
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 8 108.0 101.5 50.6
Sexual Abuse 8 66.0 54.0 47.6
Assault 5 0.0 12.0 100.0
Robbery 97 39.0 26.0 40.0
Arson 17 37.0 20.0 333
Drugs - Trafficking 5,520 48.0 423 46.8
Drugs - Communication Facility 50 18.0 17.0 50.0
Drugs - Simple Possession 7 1.0 5.0 83.3
Firearms 842 55.0 31.5 41.5
Burglary/B&E 2 -- -- --
Auto Theft 17 6.0 10.0 50.0
Larceny 79 0.0 12.0 100.0
Fraud 1,138 8.5 17.0 70.0
Embezzlement 15 6.0 8.7 58.3
Forgery/Counterfeiting 81 0.0 10.0 100.0
Bribery 71 12.0 18.0 68.4
Tax 100 0.0 12.0 100.0
Money Laundering 184 13.0 26.0 73.3
Racketeering/Extortion 139 24.0 28.0 533
Gambling/Lottery 8 0.0 6.0 100.0
Civil Rights 11 2.0 15.0 93.3
Immigration 273 10.0 12.0 50.5
Child Pornography 55 96.0 50.0 333
Prison Offenses 11 1.0 8.0 91.1
Administration of Justice Offenses 101 0.0 12.0 100.0
Environmental/Wildlife 7 0.0 16.8 100.0
National Defense 19 20.0 33.0 56.5
Antitrust 4 0.0 12.0 99.8
Food & Drug 6 0.0 16.0 100.0
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 93 1.0 17.6 97.8

' Of the 83,946 cases, 9,421 received a §5K1.1 substantial assistance departure. Of these, 9,099 cases had complete guideline application information.

Due to an inability to calculate the extent of departure for cases with a guideline minimum of life, an additional 111 cases were also excluded from
this table. Of the remaining 8,988 cases, 14 were excluded due to missing sentence information. Note that the information presented in this table
does include sentences of probation, but does not include any time of alternative confinement as described in USSG §5C1.1. Descriptions

of variables used in this table are provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY 10.
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Table 8 20
§5K3.1 EARLY DISPOSITION PROGRAM DEPARTURE CASES: DEGREE OF
DECREASE FOR OFFENDERS IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'
Fiscal Year 2010
Median Median Decrease Median Percent
Sentence in Months From Decrease From
PRIMARY OFFENSE N in Months Guideline Minimum Guideline Minimum
TOTAL 7,205 18.0 7.0 28.6
Murder 0 - - -
Manslaughter 0 -- - -
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 0 -- - -
Sexual Abuse 0 - - -
Assault 5 12.0 6.0 333
Robbery 2 -- - -
Arson 0 - - -
Drugs - Trafficking 1,272 18.0 10.0 34.8
Drugs - Communication Facility 2 -- - -
Drugs - Simple Possession 3 4.7 6.0 57.7
Firearms 8 15.0 10.0 27.6
Burglary/B&E 0 -- - -
Auto Theft 0 -- - -
Larceny 3 0.0 8.0 100.0
Fraud 4 5.5 10.6 60.7
Embezzlement 2 - - -
Forgery/Counterfeiting 2 -- - -
Bribery 0 -- - -
Tax 4 14.0 10.0 399
Money Laundering 15 1.8 6.0 70.7
Racketeering/Extortion 0 -- - -
Gambling/Lottery 0 -- - -
Civil Rights 0 -- - -
Immigration 5,874 18.0 6.0 28.3
Child Pornography 0 -- - -
Prison Offenses 3 15.0 8.0 333
Administration of Justice Offenses 5 8.0 8.4 47.4
Environmental/Wildlife 0 - - -
National Defense 0 - - -
Antitrust 0 -- - -
Food & Drug 0 -- - -
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 1 - - -

! Of the 83,946 cases, 8,119 received a §5K3.1 early disposition program departure. Of these, 7,205 cases had complete guideline application information.

Note that the information presented in this table does include sentences of probation, but does not include any time of alternative confinement as
described in USSG §5C1.1. Descriptions of variables used in this table are provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY 10.
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Table 9

21

OTHER GOVERNMENT SPONSORED BELOW RANGE CASES: DEGREE OF
DECREASE FOR OFFENDERS IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'

Fiscal Year 2010
Median Median Decrease Median Percent
Sentence in Months From Decrease From
PRIMARY OFFENSE N in Months Guideline Minimum Guideline Minimum
TOTAL 2,995 27.0 15.0 371
Murder 4 171.5 41.0 22.6
Manslaughter 2 -- -- --
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 1 -- -- --
Sexual Abuse 39 84.0 32.0 37.1
Assault 69 21.0 18.0 51.4
Robbery 38 57.0 26.0 31.4
Arson 2 - - -
Drugs - Trafficking 941 66.0 30.0 313
Drugs - Communication Facility 29 18.0 24.0 50.0
Drugs - Simple Possession 3 0.0 12.0 100.0
Firearms 369 46.0 16.5 30.0
Burglary/B&E 1 -- -- --
Auto Theft 1 - - -
Larceny 37 0.0 8.0 100.0
Fraud 269 6.0 11.0 70.7
Embezzlement 19 0.0 8.0 100.0
Forgery/Counterfeiting 24 4.5 9.5 53.8
Bribery 9 18.0 10.0 45.9
Tax 34 0.0 12.0 100.0
Money Laundering 66 4.6 12.0 66.1
Racketeering/Extortion 56 72.0 36.5 42.8
Gambling/Lottery 1 -- -- --
Civil Rights 1 - -- -
Immigration 626 12.0 5.0 333
Child Pornography 189 60.0 43.0 385
Prison Offenses 23 12.0 6.0 37.5
Administration of Justice Offenses 59 0.0 12.0 100.0
Environmental/Wildlife 7 0.0 10.0 100.0
National Defense 4 54.0 22.5 21.3
Antitrust 0 - - -
Food & Drug 4 9.0 31.5 79.9
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 68 3.5 12.0 81.9

! Of the 83,946 cases, 3,214 received an other government sponsored downward departure. Of these, 3,012 cases had complete guideline application

information. Due to an inability to calculate the extent of departure for cases with a guideline minimum of life, an additional 14 cases were
also excluded from this table. Of the remaining 2,998 cases, three were excluded due to missing sentence information. Note that the
information presented in this table does include sentences of probation, but does not include any time of alternative confinement as described in
USSG §5C1.1. Descriptions of variables used in this table are provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY 10.
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Table 10

22

DOWNWARD DEPARTURES FROM GUIDELINE RANGE: DEGREE OF
DECREASE FOR OFFENDERS IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'

Fiscal Year 2010
Median Median Decrease Median Percent
Sentence in Months From Decrease From
PRIMARY OFFENSE N in Months Guideline Minimum Guideline Minimum
TOTAL 1,598 24.0 10.0 29.5
Murder 0 - -- -
Manslaughter 0 -- -- --
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 0 -- -- --
Sexual Abuse 4 9.0 13.5 62.5
Assault 17 6.0 8.0 50.0
Robbery 36 45.0 15.5 23.9
Arson 1 - -- -
Drugs - Trafficking 349 54.0 14.0 27.1
Drugs - Communication Facility 17 30.0 17.0 333
Drugs - Simple Possession 1 -- -- --
Firearms 129 36.0 9.0 20.0
Burglary/B&E 0 -- -- --
Auto Theft 0 - -- -
Larceny 21 0.0 8.0 100.0
Fraud 115 12.0 9.0 413
Embezzlement 7 3.0 10.0 62.5
Forgery/Counterfeiting 12 2.5 11.0 86.0
Bribery 2 -- -- --
Tax 34 6.5 11.0 60.0
Money Laundering 14 15.0 6.0 53.1
Racketeering/Extortion 15 46.0 24.0 28.6
Gambling/Lottery 1 -- -- --
Civil Rights 0 - -- -
Immigration 726 18.0 7.0 28.6
Child Pornography 41 60.0 30.0 313
Prison Offenses 5 4.0 15.0 68.4
Administration of Justice Offenses 15 0.0 10.0 100.0
Environmental/Wildlife 4 0.0 10.0 100.0
National Defense 7 16.4 16.0 45.4
Antitrust 1 - -- -
Food & Drug 2 -- -- --
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 22 0.0 9.0 100.0

! Of the 83,946 cases, 1,687 received a downward departure from the guideline range. Of these, 1,599 cases had complete guideline application information.

Of these cases, one was excluded due to missing sentence information. Note that the information presented in this table does include sentences
of probation, but does not include any time of alternative confinement as described in USSG §5C1.1. Descriptions of variables used in this table are

provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY 10.
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Table 11

23

DOWNWARD DEPARTURES WITH BOOKER /18 U.S.C. § 3553: DEGREE
OF DECREASE FOR OFFENDERS IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'

Fiscal Year 2010
Median Median Decrease Median Percent
Sentence in Months From Decrease From
PRIMARY OFFENSE N in Months Guideline Minimum Guideline Minimum
TOTAL 814 24.0 18.0 429
Murder 0 - -- -
Manslaughter 0 -- -- --
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 0 -- -- --
Sexual Abuse 3 24.0 75.0 55.6
Assault 13 12.0 15.0 50.0
Robbery 30 24.0 21.0 41.4
Arson 1 - - -
Drugs - Trafficking 279 48.0 27.0 36.2
Drugs - Communication Facility 18 8.0 32.0 80.7
Drugs - Simple Possession 0 -- -- --
Firearms 94 34.5 17.5 36.8
Burglary/B&E 1 -- -- --
Auto Theft 0 - - -
Larceny 9 0.0 12.0 100.0
Fraud 101 6.0 12.0 66.7
Embezzlement 7 1.0 8.0 87.5
Forgery/Counterfeiting 8 8.0 9.5 47.0
Bribery 4 3.0 10.5 79.2
Tax 16 5.0 16.5 81.9
Money Laundering 9 14.0 23.0 47.8
Racketeering/Extortion 11 5.0 18.0 76.2
Gambling/Lottery 0 -- -- --
Civil Rights 1 - -- -
Immigration 120 19.5 11.0 36.8
Child Pornography 53 60.0 54.0 433
Prison Offenses 2 - -- -
Administration of Justice Offenses 14 6.0 11.0 58.7
Environmental/Wildlife 3 12.0 6.0 332
National Defense 4 78.0 270.0 78.3
Antitrust 1 - - -
Food & Drug 1 -- -- --
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 11 0.0 15.0 100.0

' Of the 83,946 cases, 865 received a downward departure from the guideline range with Booker/ 18 U.S.C § 3553. Of these, 818 cases had complete
guideline application information. Due to an inability to calculate the extent of departure for cases with a guideline minimum of life, an additional
three cases were also excluded from this table. Of the remaining 815 cases, one was excluded due to missing sentence information. Note

that the information presented in this table does include sentences of probation, but does not include any time of alternative confinement as

described in USSG §5C1.1. Descriptions of variables used in this table are provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY 10.
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Table 12

24

BELOW GUIDELINE RANGE WITH BOOKER /18 U.S.C. § 3553: DEGREE
OF DECREASE FOR OFFENDERS IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'

Fiscal Year 2010
Median Median Decrease Median Percent
Sentence in Months From Decrease From
PRIMARY OFFENSE N in Months Guideline Minimum Guideline Minimum
TOTAL 10,590 27.0 13.0 35.0
Murder 2 - -- -
Manslaughter 3 18.0 30.0 40.0
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 6 78.5 114.5 53.6
Sexual Abuse 44 58.0 23.5 333
Assault 80 15.0 12.0 36.4
Robbery 180 42.0 16.0 26.5
Arson 9 36.0 18.0 34.8
Drugs - Trafficking 3,629 60.0 19.0 29.4
Drugs - Communication Facility 129 24.0 18.0 45.5
Drugs - Simple Possession 5 60.0 10.0 19.4
Firearms 1,331 36.0 14.0 27.0
Burglary/B&E 9 0.0 9.0 100.0
Auto Theft 14 0.0 10.0 100.0
Larceny 212 0.0 10.0 100.0
Fraud 1,269 12.0 10.0 52.9
Embezzlement 69 0.0 8.0 99.6
Forgery/Counterfeiting 118 4.6 7.0 66.8
Bribery 53 6.0 12.0 70.0
Tax 206 5.0 12.0 75.0
Money Laundering 177 12.0 13.0 56.1
Racketeering/Extortion 114 24.5 14.8 332
Gambling/Lottery 19 0.0 10.0 100.0
Civil Rights 11 6.0 12.0 50.0
Immigration 1,749 20.0 10.0 332
Child Pornography 664 60.0 37.0 38.1
Prison Offenses 39 8.7 6.3 42.3
Administration of Justice Offenses 236 6.0 10.0 66.7
Environmental/Wildlife 23 0.0 8.0 100.0
National Defense 8 45.0 30.5 34.1
Antitrust 3 7.0 6.0 332
Food & Drug 9 5.0 21.0 80.5
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 170 0.7 10.0 94.5

' Of the 83,946 cases, 11,116 were sentenced below the guideline range with Booker/ 18 U.S.C § 3553. Of these, 10,631 cases had complete guideline
application information. Due to an inability to calculate the extent of departure for cases with a guideline minimum of life, an additional 38
cases were also excluded from this table. Of the remaining 10,593 cases, three were excluded due to missing sentence information. Note that

the information presented in this table does include sentences of probation, but does not include any time of alternative confinement

as described in USSG §5C1.1. Descriptions of variables used in this table are provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY 10.
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Table 13

25

ALL REMAINING BELOW GUIDELINE RANGE CASES: DEGREE OF
DECREASE FOR OFFENDERS IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'

Fiscal Year 2010
Median Median Decrease Median Percent
Sentence in Months From Decrease From
PRIMARY OFFENSE N in Months Guideline Minimum Guideline Minimum
TOTAL 807 10.0 6.0 48.6
Murder 0 - -- -
Manslaughter 0 -- -- --
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 0 -- -- --
Sexual Abuse 2 - -- -
Assault 7 7.3 5.0 50.0
Robbery 7 40.0 6.0 29.8
Arson 0 - - -
Drugs - Trafficking 186 45.0 12.5 333
Drugs - Communication Facility 7 12.0 18.0 59.9
Drugs - Simple Possession 5 6.0 6.0 50.0
Firearms 97 60.0 12.0 21.7
Burglary/B&E 1 -- -- --
Auto Theft 2 - - -
Larceny 32 0.0 6.0 100.0
Fraud 106 34 6.0 68.1
Embezzlement 8 0.0 6.0 99.6
Forgery/Counterfeiting 13 0.0 6.0 100.0
Bribery 4 3.7 6.4 47.2
Tax 18 0.0 6.0 100.0
Money Laundering 13 6.0 12.0 66.7
Racketeering/Extortion 7 10.0 10.0 524
Gambling/Lottery 0 -- -- --
Civil Rights 4 0.0 12.0 100.0
Immigration 208 54 3.0 49.9
Child Pornography 30 108.0 435 293
Prison Offenses 5 9.0 6.0 40.0
Administration of Justice Offenses 15 0.0 6.0 100.0
Environmental/Wildlife 4 0.9 5.1 84.3
National Defense 0 - - -
Antitrust 0 - - -
Food & Drug 1 -- -- --
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 25 0.0 6.0 100.0

' Of the 83,946 cases, 897 were otherwise sentenced below the guideline range. Of these, 812 cases had complete guideline application information.

Due to an inability to calculate the extent of departure for cases with a guideline minimum of life, an additional three cases were also excluded from
this table. Of the remaining 809 cases, two were excluded due to missing sentence information. Note that the information presented in this

table does include sentences of probation, but does not include any time of alternative confinement as described in USSG §5C1.1. Descriptions of
variables used in this table are provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY 10.
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Table 14

26

UPWARD DEPARTURES FROM GUIDELINE RANGE: DEGREE OF
INCREASE FOR OFFENDERS IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'

Fiscal Year 2010
Median Median Increase Median Percent
Sentence in Months From Increase From
PRIMARY OFFENSE N in Months Guideline Maximum Guideline Maximum
TOTAL 323 60.0 12.0 375
Murder 2 - -- -
Manslaughter 7 96.0 33.0 53.8
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 0 -- -- --
Sexual Abuse 4 148.5 28.5 31.7
Assault 10 60.5 23.5 74.6
Robbery 14 132.0 27.0 26.3
Arson 4 165.0 73.0 78.2
Drugs - Trafficking 58 96.0 12.0 24.6
Drugs - Communication Facility 1 -- -- --
Drugs - Simple Possession 4 36.0 27.0 100.0
Firearms 57 105.0 21.0 25.0
Burglary/B&E 2 -- -- --
Auto Theft 1 - -- -
Larceny 6 28.0 6.5 75.0
Fraud 23 50.0 8.0 25.0
Embezzlement 1 - -- -
Forgery/Counterfeiting 8 33.0 9.0 38.1
Bribery 1 -- -- --
Tax 0 - -- -
Money Laundering 1 -- -- --
Racketeering/Extortion 5 120.0 10.0 24.4
Gambling/Lottery 8 18.0 11.0 183.3
Civil Rights 0 - -- -
Immigration 74 31.0 8.0 41.7
Child Pornography 12 162.0 39.5 37.0
Prison Offenses 0 - -- -
Administration of Justice Offenses 7 60.0 15.0 75.6
Environmental/Wildlife 2 - - -
National Defense 1 - - -
Antitrust 0 - -- -
Food & Drug 0 -- -- --
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 10 44.0 10.5 65.8

! Of the 83,946 cases, 350 received an upward departure from the guideline range. Of these, 326 cases had complete guideline application information.

Due to an inability to calculate the extent of departure for cases with a sentence of life, one additional case was also excluded from this table.
Furthermore, two cases were excluded due to several logical criteria. Note that the information presented in this table does not include any time

of alternative confinement as described in USSG §5C1.1. Descriptions of variables used in this table are provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY 10.
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Table 15 27
UPWARD DEPARTURES WITH BOOKER /18 U.S.C. § 3553: DEGREE OF
INCREASE FOR OFFENDERS IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'
Fiscal Year 2010
Median Median Increase Median Percent
Sentence in Months From Increase From
PRIMARY OFFENSE N in Months Guideline Maximum Guideline Maximum
TOTAL 105 96.0 23.0 41.2
Murder 1 - -- -
Manslaughter 3 180.0 43.0 314
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 0 -- -- --
Sexual Abuse 5 156.0 60.0 44 4
Assault 5 72.0 26.0 53.2
Robbery 5 196.0 30.0 24.8
Arson 0 - -- -
Drugs - Trafficking 14 106.5 28.0 59.3
Drugs - Communication Facility 1 -- -- --
Drugs - Simple Possession 1 -- -- --
Firearms 21 120.0 24.0 38.7
Burglary/B&E 0 -- -- --
Auto Theft 0 - -- -
Larceny 3 24.0 12.0 100.0
Fraud 15 87.0 21.0 333
Embezzlement 0 - -- -
Forgery/Counterfeiting 3 12.0 6.0 100.0
Bribery 0 -- -- --
Tax 0 - -- -
Money Laundering 0 -- -- --
Racketeering/Extortion 2 -- -- --
Gambling/Lottery 0 -- -- --
Civil Rights 0 - -- -
Immigration 18 54.5 16.0 452
Child Pornography 2 -- -- --
Prison Offenses 2 - -- -
Administration of Justice Offenses 0 - -- -
Environmental/Wildlife 0 - -- -
National Defense 0 - - -
Antitrust 0 - -- -
Food & Drug 0 -- -- --
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 4 21.0 10.0 77.6

! Of the 83,946 cases, 119 received an upward departure from the guideline range with Booker/ 18 U.S.C § 3553. Of these, 110 cases had complete guideline
application information. Due to an inability to calculate the extent of departure for cases with a sentence of life, one additional case was also

excluded from this table. Furthermore, four cases were excluded due to several logical criteria. Note that the information presented in this table

does not include any time of alternative confinement as described in USSG §5C1.1. Descriptions of variables used in this table are provided in

Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY 10.
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Table 16

28

ABOVE GUIDELINE RANGE WITH BOOKER /18 U.S.C. § 3553: DEGREE
OF INCREASE FOR OFFENDERS IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'

Fiscal Year 2010
Median Median Increase Median Percent
Sentence in Months From Increase From
PRIMARY OFFENSE N in Months Guideline Maximum Guideline Maximum
TOTAL 855 51.0 13.0 41.2
Murder 3 300.0 90.0 42.9
Manslaughter 9 60.0 23.0 62.2
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 3 300.0 65.0 50.0
Sexual Abuse 11 144.0 25.0 46.3
Assault 16 67.5 19.5 51.9
Robbery 30 140.5 33.0 39.6
Arson 1 - - -
Drugs - Trafficking 103 84.0 14.0 30.4
Drugs - Communication Facility 2 -- -- --
Drugs - Simple Possession 2 -- -- --
Firearms 149 96.0 19.0 314
Burglary/B&E 1 -- -- --
Auto Theft 2 - - -
Larceny 20 33.0 8.0 50.0
Fraud 103 51.0 12.0 333
Embezzlement 0 - - -
Forgery/Counterfeiting 19 40.0 12.0 40.0
Bribery 1 -- -- --
Tax 4 43.5 12.0 19.6
Money Laundering 6 98.0 20.5 23.4
Racketeering/Extortion 8 186.0 48.0 38.1
Gambling/Lottery 0 -- -- --
Civil Rights 0 - -- -
Immigration 261 24.0 8.0 50.0
Child Pornography 27 240.0 42.0 333
Prison Offenses 9 45.0 15.0 71.4
Administration of Justice Offenses 33 36.0 12.0 71.4
Environmental/Wildlife 1 - - -
National Defense 2 - - -
Antitrust 0 - - -
Food & Drug 3 9.0 3.0 50.0
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 26 30.0 9.0 86.7

! Of the 83,946 cases, 916 were sentenced above the guideline range with Booker/ 18 U.S.C § 3553. Of these, 868 cases had complete guideline
application information. Due to an inability to calculate the extent of departure for cases with a sentence of life, one additional case was

also excluded from this table. Furthermore, 12 cases were excluded due to several logical criteria. Note that the information presented in

this table does not include any time of alternative confinement as described in USSG §5C1.1. Descriptions of variables used in this table

are provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY 10.
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Table 17

29

ALL REMAINING ABOVE GUIDELINE RANGE CASES: DEGREE OF
INCREASE FOR OFFENDERS IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'

PRIMARY OFFENSE

Fiscal Year 2010

Median
Sentence
in Months

Median Increase
in Months From
Guideline Maximum

Median Percent
Increase From
Guideline Maximum

TOTAL

Murder

Manslaughter
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking
Sexual Abuse

Assault

Robbery

Arson

Drugs - Trafficking
Drugs - Communication Facility
Drugs - Simple Possession
Firearms

Burglary/B&E

Auto Theft

Larceny

Fraud

Embezzlement
Forgery/Counterfeiting
Bribery

Tax

Money Laundering
Racketeering/Extortion
Gambling/Lottery

Civil Rights

Immigration

Child Pornography
Prison Offenses

Administration of Justice Offenses

Environmental/Wildlife
National Defense

Antitrust

Food & Drug

Other Miscellaneous Offenses

78

N O = O =

—_

—
W = O O O O O O O

—_ 0 O O O = O N

65.5

12.0

20.2

! Of the 83,946 cases, 127 were otherwise sentenced above the guideline range. Of these, 104 cases had complete guideline application information.

26 additional cases were excluded due to several logical criteria. Note that the information presented in this table does not include any time

of alternative confinement as described in USSG §5C1.1. Descriptions of variables used in this table are provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY10.
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Table 19
SENTENCE LENGTH IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'
Fiscal Year 2010
Mean Median
PRIMARY OFFENSE Months Months N
TOTAL 44.3 21.0 83,919
Murder 276.1 251.0 66
Manslaughter 72.6 44.0 64
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 162.7 144.0 39
Sexual Abuse 108.6 96.0 384
Assault 37.6 24.0 631
Robbery 76.8 62.0 1,081
Arson 78.6 60.0 75
Drugs - Trafficking 74.9 60.0 23,503
Drugs - Communication Facility 34.3 32.0 512
Drugs - Simple Possession 34 3.0 1,024
Firearms 85.0 57.0 7,984
Burglary/B&E 16.7 13.5 36
Auto Theft 51.0 24.0 91
Larceny 7.6 0.0 1,617
Fraud 23.2 10.0 8,065
Embezzlement 7.8 3.0 434
Forgery/Counterfeiting 14.4 12.0 880
Bribery 19.7 12.0 224
Tax 16.3 12.0 665
Money Laundering 30.6 15.0 806
Racketeering/Extortion 76.7 44.0 675
Gambling/Lottery 6.0 5.0 76
Civil Rights 22.5 12.0 61
Immigration 16.8 10.0 28,496
Child Pornography 118.0 80.0 1,886
Prison Offenses 154 12.0 424
Administration of Justice Offenses 18.1 12.0 1,157
Environmental/Wildlife 3.0 0.0 188
National Defense 535 34.0 69
Antitrust 7.4 8.0 16
Food & Drug 10.3 0.0 84
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 10.4 0.0 2,606

' Of the 83,946 cases, 27 were excluded due to missing or indeterminable sentencing information. Sentences of probation only are included in this table as
zero months of imprisonment. In addition, the information presented in this table includes time of confinement as described in USSG §5C1.1.
Descriptions of variables used in this table are provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY10.
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Table 20 39
WITHIN RANGE CASES: POSITION OF SENTENCE FOR OFFENDERS
IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'
Fiscal Year 2010
Guideline Lower Half Midpoint Upper Half Guideline
Minimum of Range of Range of Range Maximum
PRIMARY OFFENSE TOTAL N % N % N % N % N %
TOTAL 35,793 18,009 50.3 7,086 19.8 3,498 9.8 3,284 9.2 3,916 10.9
Murder 23 9 39.1 6 26.1 1 43 6 26.1 1 43
Manslaughter 36 14 38.9 2 5.6 8 222 1 2.8 11 30.6
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 14 7 50.0 3 214 0 0.0 2 14.3 2 14.3
Sexual Abuse 182 74 40.7 38 20.9 13 7.1 17 9.3 40 22.0
Assault 287 118 41.1 37 12.9 34 11.8 40 139 58 20.2
Robbery 590 293 49.7 102 17.3 48 8.1 56 9.5 91 15.4
Arson 27 9 333 6 222 1 3.7 3 11.1 8 29.6
Drugs - Trafficking 9,166 6,109 66.6 1,462 16.0 689 7.5 390 43 516 5.6
Drugs - Communication Facility 100 68 68.0 13 13.0 3 3.0 3 3.0 13 13.0
Drugs - Simple Possession 176 127 72.2 24 13.6 11 6.3 4 23 10 5.7
Firearms 4,057 2,160 53.2 589 14.5 392 9.7 326 8.0 590 14.5
Burglary/B&E 18 4 222 1 5.6 4 222 4 222 5 27.8
Auto Theft 46 26 56.5 6 13.0 3 6.5 3 6.5 8 17.4
Larceny 793 561 70.7 88 11.1 52 6.6 29 3.7 63 7.9
Fraud 3,226 1,822 56.5 494 15.3 288 8.9 228 7.1 394 12.2
Embezzlement 272 202 74.3 30 11.0 10 3.7 9 33 21 7.7
Forgery/Counterfeiting 540 270 50.0 80 14.8 56 10.4 50 9.3 84 15.6
Bribery 69 41 59.4 15 21.7 5 7.2 2 2.9 6 8.7
Tax 200 121 60.5 33 16.5 8 4.0 8 4.0 30 15.0
Money Laundering 248 161 64.9 40 16.1 21 8.5 10 4.0 16 6.5
Racketeering/Extortion 192 120 62.5 32 16.7 7 3.6 11 5.7 22 11.5
Gambling/Lottery 37 29 78.4 6 16.2 0 0.0 0 0.0 2 5.4
Civil Rights 23 11 47.8 3 13.0 3 13.0 2 8.7 4 17.4
Immigration 13,199 4,241 32.1 3,697 28.0 1,658 12.6 1,949 14.8 1,654 12.5
Child Pornography 644 390 60.6 90 14.0 44 6.8 54 8.4 66 10.2
Prison Offenses 285 140 49.1 47 16.5 43 15.1 14 4.9 41 14.4
Administration of Justice Offenses 552 328 59.4 55 10.0 50 9.1 29 5.3 90 16.3
Environmental/Wildlife 66 54 81.8 5 7.6 1 1.5 3 4.5 3 4.5
National Defense 18 14 77.8 2 11.1 1 5.6 0 0.0 1 5.6
Antitrust 2 1 50.0 0 0.0 1 50.0 0 0.0 0 0.0
Food & Drug 37 33 89.2 0 0.0 1 2.7 2 5.4 1 2.7
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 668 452 67.7 80 12.0 42 6.3 29 43 65 9.7

! Of the 83,946 cases, 45,028 were sentenced within the applicable guideline range. Of those, 38,294 cases had complete guideline application information. An additional

2,501 cases were excluded due to several logical criteria. Descriptions of variables used in this table are provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY10.
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Table 21

GUIDELINE OFFENDERS IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'

Fiscal Year 2010

PRIMARY OFFENSE N %

TOTAL 83,946 100.0
Murder 66 0.1
Manslaughter 64 0.1
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 39 0.0
Sexual Abuse 384 0.5
Assault 631 0.8
Robbery 1,081 1.3
Arson 75 0.1
Drugs - Trafficking 23,506 28.0
Drugs - Communication Facility 512 0.6
Drugs - Simple Possession 1,025 1.2
Firearms 7,986 9.5
Burglary/B&E 36 0.0
Auto Theft 91 0.1
Larceny 1,621 1.9
Fraud 8,067 9.6
Embezzlement 435 0.5
Forgery/Counterfeiting 880 1.0
Bribery 224 0.3
Tax 665 0.8
Money Laundering 806 1.0
Racketeering/Extortion 675 0.8
Gambling/Lottery 76 0.1
Civil Rights 61 0.1
Immigration 28,504 34.0
Child Pornography 1,886 2.2
Prison Offenses 424 0.5
Administration of Justice Offenses 1,157 1.4
Environmental/Wildlife 188 0.2
National Defense 70 0.1
Antitrust 16 0.0
Food & Drug 84 0.1
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 2,611 3.1

! Descriptions of variables used in this table are provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY10.
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Table 22
GUILTY PLEAS AND TRIALS IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'
Fiscal Year 2010
PLEA TRIAL

PRIMARY OFFENSE TOTAL N % N %
TOTAL 83,941 81,217 96.8 2,724 3.2
Murder 66 45 68.2 21 31.8
Manslaughter 64 60 93.8 4 6.3
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 39 36 92.3 7.7
Sexual Abuse 384 336 87.5 48 12.5
Assault 631 568 90.0 63 10.0
Robbery 1,081 1,040 96.2 41 3.8
Arson 75 65 86.7 10 133
Drugs - Trafficking 23,506 22,649 96.4 857 3.6
Drugs - Communication Facility 512 511 99.8 1 0.2
Drugs - Simple Possession 1,024 1,004 98.0 20 2.0
Firearms 7,986 7,485 93.7 501 6.3
Burglary/B&E 36 36 100.0 0 0.0
Auto Theft 91 89 97.8 2 22
Larceny 1,621 1,579 97.4 42 2.6
Fraud 8,067 7,675 95.1 392 4.9
Embezzlement 435 417 95.9 18 4.1
Forgery/Counterfeiting 880 873 99.2 7 0.8
Bribery 224 204 91.1 20 8.9
Tax 665 602 90.5 63 9.5
Money Laundering 806 750 93.1 56 6.9
Racketeering/Extortion 675 623 923 52 7.7
Gambling/Lottery 76 73 96.1 3 3.9
Civil Rights 61 51 83.6 10 16.4
Immigration 28,504 28,321 99.4 183 0.6
Child Pornography 1,886 1,801 95.5 85 4.5
Prison Offenses 424 419 98.8 5 1.2
Administration of Justice Offenses 1,157 1,090 94.2 67 5.8
Environmental/Wildlife 188 176 93.6 12 6.4
National Defense 70 64 91.4 6 8.6
Antitrust 16 15 93.8 1 6.3
Food & Drug 84 80 95.2 4 4.8
Other Miscellaneous Offenses 2,607 2,480 95.1 127 4.9

' Of the 83,946 cases, five were excluded due to missing information on mode of conviction. Descriptions of variables used in this table are

provided in Appendix A.

SOURCE: U.S. Sentencing Commission, 2010 Datafile, USSCFY10.
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Table 23
RACE OF OFFENDERS IN EACH PRIMARY OFFENSE CATEGORY'
Fiscal Year 2010
WHITE BLACK HISPANIC OTHER
PRIMARY OFFENSE TOTAL N % N % N % N %
TOTAL 75,378 20,796 27.6 15,613 20.7 36,293 48.1 2,676 3.6
Murder 65 18 27.7 8 12.3 7 10.8 32 49.2
Manslaughter 64 1 1.6 4 6.3 8 12.5 51 79.7
Kidnapping/Hostage Taking 38 7 18.4 6 15.8 23 60.5 2 53
Sexual Abuse 383 171 44.6 40 10.4 31 8.1 141 36.8
Assault 550 151 27.5 109 19.8 78 14.2 212 38.5
Robbery 1,075 479 44.6 428 39.8 130 12.1 38 3.5
Arson 75 44 58.7 10 133 6 8.0 15 20.0
Drugs - Trafficking 23,382 6,087 26.0 6,169 26.4 10,378 44 .4 748 32
Drugs - Communication Facility 508 124 24.4 191 37.6 173 34.1 20 3.9
Drugs - Simple Possession 282 147 52.1 57 20.2 67 23.8 11 3.9
Firearms 7,917 2,293 29.0 3,961 50.0 1,449 18.3 214 2.7
Burglary/B&E 34 4 11.8 4 11.8 2 5.9 24 70.6
Auto Theft 91 46 50.5 17 18.7 26 28.6 2 22
Larceny 1,321 659 49.9 422 31.9 156 11.8 84 6.4
Fraud 6,820 3,200 46.9 2,074 30.